ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE

February 17, 2017
3:17 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve
Representative

Sam Kito, Chair

Adam Wool , Vice Chair

Andy Josephson

Loui se Stutes (via tel econference)

Chris Birch

Gary Knopp

Col l een Sul l'ivan-Leonard (via tel econference)

M ke Chenault (alternate)
Bryce Edgnon (al ternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO.

110

"An Act relating to the practice of massage therapy; relating to
the Board of Massage Therapists; and providing for an effective

date."

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 110

SHORT TI TLE: MASSAGE THERAPY LI CENSI NG, EXEMPTI ONS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) Kl TO

02/ 08/ 17
02/ 08/ 17
02/ 15/ 17
02/ 15/ 17
02/ 15/ 17
02/ 17/ 17

(H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
(H) L&C, FIN

(H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

(H) Heard & Held

(H) M NUTE( L&C)

(H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, St aff

Representati ve

Sam Ki t o

Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 17, 2017



Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 110
Representative Kito, prine sponsor.

MARK HUTTON, Rol fer

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

LAURA EMBERTON, Director
Gover nnent Rel ati ons
Associ at ed Bodywor ks & Massage

CGol den, Col orado

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
RYAN RI CE, Rol fing Student

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
ANMANDA NOSI CH

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

EDWARD TOAL, Rol fer
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
BARBARA MAI ER, Certified Advanced Rol fer
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
GAl L BOERW NKLES, Rol fer

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
JEN LANDRY

Anmerican Organi zati on for Bodywork Therap
Gust avus, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
MARY REI MANN, President

Al aska Refl exol ogy Associ ati on ( AKRA)
Chugi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi
DAYLE SHERBA

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE

Pr of essi onal s

on

on

of

on

on

on

es

on

on

on

on behalf of the

to HB 110.

( ABMVP)

to HB 110.

to HB 110.

HB 110.

to HB 110.

to HB 110.

to HB 110.

of Asia (AOBTA)

to HB 110.

to HB 110.

to HB 110.

February 17, 2017



SONJA WAY, CGovernment Rel ations Speci al i st
Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards (FSMIB)
Overl and Park, Kansas

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 110.

MARY O REILLY, Director of Exam nations

Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards (FSMIB)
Overl and Park, Kansas

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 110.

| RIS AHARONOVI CH, Chair

Legi sl ati on and Education Conmittee

Ref | exol ogy Associ ation of America

Rockville, Maryl and

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 110.

LAUREN PAAP, President

American Organi zation for Bodywork Therapi es of Asia (AOBTA)
Canbri dge, Massachusetts

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 110.

JILL MOTZ
Wasill a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 110.

GRETCHEN GRAEFF, Massage Therapi st and Rol fer
Ni ki ski, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 110.

DEVRON HELLI NGS
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 110.

KAY BROMN
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 110.

SHARON LEE, Fel denkrais Practitioner
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 110.

CHRI STI NE | SSEL, Menber

Anmerican Refl exology Certification Board (ARCB)

Auburn, California

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 110.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 3- February 17, 2017



TRACI G LMOUR, Massage Therapi st
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 110.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:17: 30 PM

CHAIR SAM KITO called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:17 p.m Represent ati ves
Josephson, Wbol, Knopp, and Kito were present at the call to
order. Representatives Birch, Stutes (via teleconference), and
Sul l'ivan-Leonard (via teleconference) arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 110- MASSAGE THERAPY LI CENSI NG EXEMPTI ONS

3:17: 56 PM

CHAI R KITO announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 110, "An Act relating to the practice of nmassage
therapy; relating to the Board of WMssage Therapists; and
providing for an effective date."

3:18: 18 PM

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, Staff, Representative Sam Kito, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 110 on behalf of Representative Kito
prime sponsor. She stated that the bill would add |anguage
allowing the Board of Massage Therapists to adopt regulations
governing massage therapy establishnents. The proposed
| egi sl ati on woul d: increase the nunmber of hours for in-class
supervi sed instruction and clinical work at an approved nassage
school from 500 to 625 hours; reduce the nunber of hours of
bl ood- bor ne pat hogen education from four hours to two hours; and
allow the board to issue exenptions from the |icensing
requi renents for practitioners of certain professions who submt
an application, pay a registration fee, and submt proof that
they neet the exenptions. She noted that HB 110 does not extend
any regulatory or statutory authority of other professions to
the board, but it would ensure that the departnment knows who is
practi ci ng.

3:19: 57 PM

CHAI R KI TO opened public testinony on HB 110.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- February 17, 2017



3:20:10 PM

MARK HUTTON, Rolfer, testified in opposition to HB 110. He
referred to a letter he wote to the conmttee [included in the
commttee packet], which he stated is truthful, verifiable, and
consistent with the conmmon good. He expressed that those
proposing the bill have said that the bill 1is not about
regulating the Rolfing and structural integration comunity but
is merely a registry required to conbat ranpant human and sex
trafficking. He offered his opinion that such coments are
m sl eadi ng and untrue. He directed attention to one of the
proposed duties of the Board of Massage Therapists proposed
under HB 110, paragraph (3), on page 4, lines 1 and 2, which
read as foll ows:

(3) establish by regulation standards and
requi renents for persons applying for an exenption
under this section.

VR. HUTTON stated that he opposes paragraph (3). He
characterized human and sex trafficking as sick behaviors that
do great harm to the public and need to be policed. He noted
that the nbst recent crimnal charge against a Rolfer was in
M nnesota in 2010, and the Rolfer thereafter lost his
certification. The nost recent anong a long list of crimnal
charges agai nst massage therapists was on January 18, 2017. He
remar ked,

What bothers nme is it seens unconscionable that you
woul d use this kind of puritan, red, white, and bl ue,
all Anerican banner, which everyone agrees wth, to
slip in a clause or a phrase that in essence and in
truth places regulation on ny industry under another
unrel ated industry.

MR. HUTTON stated that the current registry is effective. He
urged the conmttee not to adopt a registry that serves no

pur pose. He comented that the state needs fiscal
accountability and a needs-based assessnent before changing
current | aw. He opined that the conmittee deserves accurate
information and truthful testi nony. He noted that the

| egislative process allows for spirited debate of issues and
points of view but there is no place for m sleading information.

He urged the commttee to read a letter from the chair of the
I nternational Association of Structural Integrators (I1ASlI) Law

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 17, 2017



and Regulation Commttee [included in the conmttee packet] to
find correct information.

MR. HUTTON inforned the commttee that his client received a
response froma commttee nenber's office that said [the nenber]
respects the client's opinion but would proceed on his/her
current trajectory, the client was msinformed, and the bill
woul d give Rolfers a professional status. He assessed that the
menber's response was preconceived and showed that the end
result was valued nore than the search for truth; he advised
t hat public hearings should weigh opinions and information. He
asked the commttee to dism ss untrue and unsubstantiated cl ains
and produce legislation that would actually target the risks of
sex trafficking in the nassage industry.

3:24: 35 PM

LAURA EMBERTON, Di rector, CGovernnent  Rel ations, Associated
Bodyworks & Massage Professionals (ABMP), testified in
opposition to HB 110. She stated that ABMP is one of the
| argest professional associations for massage therapists and
bodyworkers in the country with over 80,000 nenbers nationw de
and nore than 300 nenbers in Al aska. She stated that ABWP
believes that human trafficking often goes through the nmassage
i ndustry. She recommended addressing the problem by increasing
crimnal punishnents, providing counseling for wvictinms, and
allowing local governments to conduct inspections to determ ne
whet her all businesses have the |icenses necessary. She opi ned
that |ocal governnents should have the authority to inspect all

busi nesses. She expressed that establishnent |icensing creates
an unfair financial and |ogistical burden on people doing things
| egal ly. She assessed that the bill would only affect those
acting legally, not those performng illegal actions.

M5. EMBERTON stated that ABMP is in favor of noving to 625
hours, but asked for a grandfathering clause for those currently
enrolled in a 500-hour school. She added that changing the
requi renent would create an issue for soneone with a |icense
comng from another state. She suggested that the issue could
be solved with an endorsenent of out-of-state |icenses, hours of
practice, and an individual's lack of disciplinary actions. She
claimed that ABMP's main opposition to HB 110 is wth the
registry for exenpt nodalities, which she conpared to a person
having to register and pay to not have a license. She renarked:

If a practice is not regulated, those practitioners
should not be required to register and pay an

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 6- February 17, 2017



arbitrary fee not to have a Ilicense. To require a
person to apply, pay a fee, and submt proof
satisfactory to the board is subjective and opens the

process up to ... potential abuse. In nost regul ated
states, bodywork professionals are not required to
obtain a license or to register to practice their

pr of essi on.

M5. EMBERTON acknow edged that there are bad actors in the body
wor k profession, but stated that requiring licensing is not the
solution. She asked the conmmttee to get rid of the section in
HB 110 regarding the registry, to adjust the 625-hour
requi renent to account for those operating under the current
statute, and to "get rid of the nmassage ... t her apy
est abl i shnents. "

3:28:41 PM

RYAN RICE, Rolfing Student, testified in opposition to HB 110
He stated that he is in training to becone a Rolfer, which
involves extensive time on the subjects of therapeutic
rel ati onshi ps and sex trafficking. He recommended that HB 110
be dropped or reconsidered.

3:29:54 PM

AMANDA NOSICH testified in support of HB 110. She drew on her
experience as the forner <chair of the Board of Massage

Ther api st s. She stated that at board neetings, the [Federal
Bureau of Investigations] (FBI) and other state agencies
requested to have nassage establishnents regulated, and the
board felt it was necessary because of human and sex
trafficking. The registration of exenptions would prevent

illicit businesses from reopening under a different exenpted
nodal ity after being shut down. She nentioned that the board's
intention is to stop human and sex trafficking, not just nove it
t o anot her busi ness.

MS. NOSICH noted that the 625-hour requirenent would have a two-
year leniency to allow people currently enrolled in a 500-hour
programto finish. The board has previously spoken about adding
a regulation to allow licensure of out-of-state |icensees who
have graduated with 500 hours and have witten docunentation and
notary of education or clinical experience totaling 125 hours.
She expressed that the board is not seeking to overregul ate
Rolfers or any other exenpted nodality. She acknow edged t hat

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 17, 2017



the nodalities are different; the board is looking to stop
nmovi ng the human and sex trafficking to other businesses.

3:32:43 PM
EDWARD TOAL, Rolfer, testified in opposition to HB 110. He

contradicted previous testinony which informed the conmttee
that current statute allows anyone to hang a shingle and claim

an exenption from a massage license requirenment by stating
he/she is a Rolfer or structural integrator wthout the
authorities' know edge of his/her professional |egitinacy. He

drew attention to the requirenents listed in AS 08.61. 080, which
read as foll ows:

(10) person engaged only in the practice of
structural integration for restoring postural balance
and functional ease by integrating the body in gravity
using a system of fascial manipulation and awareness
who has graduated from a program or is a current
menber of an or gani zati on recogni zed by t he
I nternational Association of Structural Integrators,
i ncl udi ng t he Rol f Institute of Structural
| nt egrati on;

MR. TOAL enphasized that a person nust be a graduate of a
particular group of trainings and be nonitored by IASI to claim

the exenption. He expressed that although previous testinony
deni ed It HB 110 would at t enpt to regul at e exenpt
practitioners. He referenced HB 110, page 4, lines 1 and 2,

which read as follows: "establish by regulation standards and
requi renents for persons applying for an exenption under this
section.” He explained that under HB 110, his profession's
exception would be noved out of protected statutory |anguage and
pl aced under the authority of the Board of Massage Therapists
which is not qualified to regulate the exenption.

3:35: 03 PM

BARBARA  MAI ER, Certified Advanced Rolfer, testified in
opposition to HB 110. She stated that she has had a Rolfing
practice in Anchorage for 35 years. She referenced enmils she
sent to commttee nenbers [included in the conmttee packet].
She expressed that she supports |egislation addressing human and
sex trafficking in Al aska, and she offered her opinion that HB
110 would not achieve that desired end. She drew attention to
HB 110, Section 5, line 14, which would repeal four categories
of statutory [exceptions] but would |eave nine intact. She

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 8- February 17, 2017



opined that singling out structural integration is punitive.
She stated that no evidence of problens within the structural
integration profession has been brought to the board, the FBI,
or the Departnent of Public Safety.

M5. MAIER nentioned docunents from I[ASI [included in the
commttee packet] that explain the scope of practice and ethical
standards of structural integration, and she said the docunents
argue that structural integration is a distinct and separate
pr of essi on. She stated her opposition to Section 5 of HB 110,
whi ch she said would give conplete jurisdiction to the board to

control policy and procedure. The proposed bill calls for a
registry of exenpted persons and establishes regulations and
requirenments for exenpti ons, whi ch she expressed IS

"unacceptabl e and intolerable.”

MS. MAIER noted that under HB 110, structural integrators would
be controlled by a board with no know edge or appreciation of
t he profession. She said that structural integrators do not
want to be associated wth the massage industry and its
probl enms. She remarked, "W are not part of their problens, and
we are not a part of their solution.™ She stated that it is
ridiculous to suggest that registering exenptions would solve
the sex trafficking issue. She added that she has not had any
ki nd or productive encounters wth the board. She offered her
inpression that the board has harassed structural integrators
for three years by wi thholding informati on and has done so under
the guise of [preventing] sex trafficking. She opined that the
proposed legislation is an attenpt of one industry to control
anot her. She asked the conmttee to vote down HB 110 or at
| east strike pages 3 and 4 of the bill.

3:40: 30 PM

GAI L BOERW NKLES, Rolfer, testified in opposition to HB 110.
She referenced the previously cited |language in HB 110, on page
4, line 1 and analyzed that that |anguage would give the board
conpl ete deci sion-making authority on regul ations although there
is no representation for structural integrators on the board.
She noted that the board's authority would not be based on
standards or input from structural i ntegrators, and she
characterized the authority as severe overreach. She stated
that while she respects the effort to stop sex trafficking, she
sees no correlation between Rolfers and the nassage therapy

establishments that have "bad people doing bad things." She
expressed that finding herself put on a prostitute watch |ist
feels awful. She urged the commttee to stop HB 110. She

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - O- February 17, 2017



suggested that the board tweak the hours required of nmssage
t herapi sts if needed.

3:42: 44 PM

JEN LANDRY, Anerican Organization for Bodywork Therapies of
Asia, testified in opposition to HB 110. She stated that since
2004, she has been a practicing bodywork professional and has
been certified wth the Anmerican Oganization for Bodywork
Therapies of Asia (AOBTA) and the National Certification
Comm ssion for Acupuncture and Oiental Medicine (NCCAQM . She
of fered her understanding that her practices and expertise are
exenpt from current statute; her eastern approach is focused on
meridi ans and pressure points, not nuscle tissue. She noted
that the statutory |anguage is vague for professions other than
Rol f ers. She urged that all proposed legislation in this realm
have nore specific |anguage for other bodywork professionals.
She stated that current statute and HB 110 are biased agai nst
practitioners making a living in rural areas with a smal
popul ati on base. She expressed that the fees inposed by the HB
110 would likely be beyond what she could absorb as a part-tine
prof essional and would be an undue burden. She aired that she
does not find HB 110 to be in the best interest of the community
or industry professionals.

3:44: 53 PM

MARY REI MANN, President, Al aska Reflexol ogy Association (AKRA)
testified in opposition to HB 110. She stated that she
considers the proposed bill to be horribly witten and considers

it extreme to change things every two years. She noted that she
does not want the Board of Massage Therapists to set standards

for her as a reflexol ogi st. She stated that she has nmuch nore
training in her profession than the board nenbers. She
acknow edged that human trafficking is a concern, but it is not
related to the professions [reclassified in HB 110]. She
expl ai ned that nmssage practices involve renoval of clothing,
while reflexology clients only renove shoes and socks. She

listed other professions where touch over clothing is involved
such as yoga instructors, shoe shiners, and personal trainers.
She expressed that these professions are not in the sane
cat egory [ as massage] . She noted that Rol fers and
refl exol ogi sts have been singled out in the wording of HB 110
She urged the conmttee to vote agai nst HB 110.

3:48: 01 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -10- February 17, 2017



DAYLE SHERBA testified in opposition to HB 110. She offered her
opinion that the bill is a solution looking for a problem She
stated that she is opposed to human trafficking. She expressed
that the nodalities [reclassified in HB 110] are very different
from massage. She noted that she disagrees with M. [Edwards-
Smth]'s testinony in a prior neeting regarding a task analysis
which concluded that the other nopdalities are simlar to
massage. She restated that the nodalities are very different.

3:49:11 PM

SONJA VWAY, Governnent Rel ations Specialist, Federation of State
Massage Therapy Boards (FSMIB), testified in support of HB 110.
She remar ked:

The federation is a 501(c)(3) non-profit governed by
massage therapy state licensing boards and agencies in
the United States. Qur mission is to support our 43
menber boards, including the Al aska Board of Massage
Therapists, in their work to ensure that the practice
of massage therapy is provided ... to the public in a
safe and effective manner. In support of the Al aska
Board of Massage Therapists, FSMIB w shes to offer
information on regulation of the practice of massage
and bodywork therapy. The first school of massage
therapy in the United States was established in 1916
and the profession has grown and evolved in many
different ways, both formal and informal, since then.
Today, massage therapists are frequently working with
other professions as a part of a team of healthcare
provi ders. Massage therapists are often a first point
of cont act for t he consuner in prevention

identification, assessnent, t reat nent, and
rehabilitation of many pathologies and conditions.
Therefore, uniformregulation is needed to protect the
publi c.

M5. WAY stated that the FSMIB devel oped a Mdel Practice Act
(MPA) to provide a conprehensive resource to assist regulators
with statutory |anguage based upon the collective w sdom of the
massage therapy regulatory comunity. The MPA contained a
recommended definition of the practice of nmassage therapy and
used broad descriptions reflecting practice rather t han
identifying the therapeutic approach by nane. She noted that
FSMIB encourages the broad |anguage in order to recognize the
authority of the board to interpret the services and activities

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 17, 2017



defined in the scope through rulenmaking and administrative
oper at i ons.

M5. WAY explained that FSMIB conducted a job task analysis in
2007 and 2013 to assess the necessary skills and know edge of
entry level practitioners. The anal ysis concluded that massage
t herapi sts, bodywork therapists, and somatic therapists have a
nearly perfect alignnment of frequency and inportance of tasks
per f or med. She reiterated that FSMIB supports the public
protection of citizens through HB 110.

3:52:27 PM

MARY O REILLY, Director of Exam nations, Federation of State
Massage Therapy Boards (FSMIB), said that she concurred with M.
Way' s testinony.

3:52:45 PM

RIS AHARONOVI CH, Chair, Legislation and Education Conmttee,
Ref | exol ogy Association of Anerica, testified in opposition to
HB 110. She stated her support of Christine Issel's witten
testinmony [included in the conmmttee packet]. She expl ai ned
that she started working in reflexology 20 years ago in Israel,
where reflexology is very different from nassage and 1is

recogni zed as a therapeutic nethod. In Israel, reflexology is
considered nedical care and is paid for by insurance conpanies
and the governnent. It is a health service that citizens can
receive in hospitals and nedical centers. Doctors refer
patients to reflexol ogists. She analyzed that reflexology is
very different from mnmassage; they are tw different and
unrelated techniques and nethods. She explained that

refl exology deals with nerves and organs; mnmssage deals wth
nmuscl es.

3:54:28 PM

LAUREN PAAP, President, Anerican Oganization for Bodywork
Therapies of Asia (AOBTA), testified in opposition to HB 110.
She explained that FSMIB has been working with state boards
across the nation to expand the scope of authority with the
claimed intent to solve human trafficking. She stated that the
federation's claimis a guise. She said AOBTA attenpted to work
col | aboratively with FSMIB to define scopes of authority, but
FSMIB defined the scope w thout AOBTA' s input or support. She
expl ained that FSMIB has treated the verb "namssage" as a noun
synonynous with an industry. She remarked, "They tried to say

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 17, 2017



t hat anyone who touches the body, therefore, is massage." She
stated that although it maybe be true in the sense of the verb
it is not true in the sense of the scope of authority. She
expressed that FSMIB does not want to define what a nassage
therapist is so that people can self-identify; this is happening
in many states, and it works to expand the scope of authority of
massage. She stated that a clear exenption is needed for
practitioners of bodywor k with certified pr of essi ona
menber shi ps. She concluded that AOBTA is not opposed to people
checki ng on bodywork professionals, but is opposed to HB 110.

3:58: 07 PM

JILL MOTZ testified in support of HB 110. She stated that she
doesn't believe asking bodyworkers to prove thenselves to be who
they claim to be is burdensone or unreasonabl e. She expl ai ned
that HB 110 would not require exenpted practitioners to apply
for a license or to conply with nassage therapists' regulations.
She expressed that the proposed legislation is not an attenpt to
conpare massage therapists and the other nodalities or increase

conpetition, but the bill asks the practitioners of other
nodalities to provide their credentials. An exenption would
| ast for approximtely 10 years. She remarked, "W're asking
for an exenption, not a full application.” She expressed that
the registration fee is not likely to be high and the board is
not trying to oversee anyone. She stated her understanding that
the bill is an attenpt to solve a problem with which |aw
enforcenent has asked for help. She noted that many nassage

t herapi sts al so practice structural integration.
4:00: 42 PM

GRETCHEN GRAEFF, WMassage Therapist and Rolfer, testified in
opposition to HB 110. She stated that the board appears to have
put in trenendous effort to expand its regulation jurisdiction
and doing so has distracted the board from its current
jurisdiction. She expressed that she has concern about
crimnals interfacing with the nmassage profession, but the
board's focus should be on the interface between the profession
and clients. She said that she finds HB 110 questionabl e and of
great concern. She pointed out that universal precautions for
infections are outdated; they were developed to protect health
care workers from getting infections from exposure to bl ood.
Since then, the [Centers for Di sease Control] (CDC) has expanded
its reconmmendations for infection control. She stated that she
opposes the idea of being required to continue education in an
out dat ed node. She opined that the board's role is an odd

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -13- February 17, 2017



conmbi nati on of oversight and "undersight." She suggested that a
solution to the problem would be to add "standard" precautions
to wuniversal precautions. She agreed that human traffickers
exploit her profession, but she does not believe HB 110 is the
sol uti on.

4:04:54 PM

DEVRON HELLI NGS testified in opposition to HB 110. She noted
that she has been a Rolfing, acupuncture, and therapeutic
massage client. She stated that she is aware of the different
| evel s of education, training, and peer review required for
Rol fers and acupuncturists. The professions require diplomas or
certifications, adhere to industry standards and nationa
protocols, and do not belong under the jurisdiction of the Board
of Massage Therapists. She said that she does not intend to be
critical of nmassage therapists, but she opined that their
training lacks the sophistication and financial comtnent

required  of Rolfers and acupuncturists. Rol fers and
acupuncturists do not relocate their practices at a whin they
establish |ong-term business practices. She acknow edged t hat

there is concern of human trafficking in Al aska. She said she
had heard reports from the FBI Human Trafficking Task Force
while attending conventions of the Association of Village
Council Presidents and the Al aska Federation of Natives.

M5. HELLINGS remarked, "The nassage board and its industry
concerns over human trafficking is sinply a charade. Its true
objective is to inmpugn and dimnish the profession of Rolfing
and structural integration by subjugating themto its power and
control.”" She said HB 110 affiliates Rolfing and structural
integration professionals with the nassage industry although the
professions are distinctly different. She opined that HB 110 is
bureaucratic overreach and would unnecessarily govern and
regul ate the Rolfing, acupuncture, and reflexology industries.
She offered her belief that including Rolfers and structural
integration practitioners wth the nassage industry is a
travesty. She aired that HB 110 is an attack from the board on
the integrity and reputation of the Rolfing industry. She urged
the committee to vote against HB 110.

4:07:27 PM

KAY BROM testified in opposition to HB 110. She stated that
she supports the previous testinonies of nenbers of the Rolfing
community. She noted that despite prior contrary testinony, the
bill gives power to the board to regulate Rolfers and other

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 17, 2017



nodal i ti es. She drew attention to HB 110, page 3, line 28 to

page 4, line 2, which directs the board to adopt regulations,
standards, and requirenents for the exenpted groups. She
remarked, "This is in contradiction to what has been stated as
the intent of the bill." She urged the commttee to renove the

af orenentioned lines, |eave the exenptions in place, and find
anot her solution to address the registry issue.

4:09:47 PM

SHARON LEE, Fel denkrais Practitioner, testified in opposition to
HB 110. She requested that her profession's current exception
remain in place. She stated that HB 110 should be limted to
regul ating only massage therapists, which is the only profession
that falls within the scope of practice of the board. Each
discipline currently exenpted in statute has a specific set of
skills, education, scope of practice, and professional conduct,
and thus should remain separate from the Board of Massage
Ther api st s.

M5. LEE explained that the Feldenkrais Method is a nethod of
| earning shown to have therapeutic benefits. It uses novenent
and directed attention to increase awareness and function.
Fel denkrai s students beconme aware of existing patterns of action
and the nmethod guides a discovery of additional possibilities of

action. She noted that the Feldenkrais Method facilitates
recovery of novenment, inproves skills, and enhances | earning.
Touch is one elenent of the |earning process that may or may not
be used in Feldenkrais |essons. In lessons that do involve

touch, the student is fully clothed and the intent of touch is
to pronote learning, and touch is gentle, non-invasive, and non-

corrective. She explained that certified Fel denkrais teachers
conplete 800 hours of specialized training over a three- to
four-year period. Massage therapists conplete 500 hours of

training in a shorter anount of tinme. She renmarked:

The Feldenkrais @iild has developed and enforced
accreditation and certification standards for the
Fel denkrai s Method profession since 1977, and teachers
must graduate from an accredited Fel denkrais program
be certified, fulfill the requirenments for annual
certification renewal, continue education, and adhere
to the strict code of professional conduct,
ethics, and standards of practice.

M5. LEE informed that Fel denkrais.com provides a way to find al
certified Feldenkrais practitioners in Al aska, which is nuch

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 15- February 17, 2017



| ess expensive than creating legislation for a registry. She
offered her opinion that there should be no change to the
exi sting exenptions.

4:13:14 PM

CHRI STINE | SSEL, Anerican Reflexology Certification Board (ARCB)
testified in opposition to HB 110. She stated that ARCB agrees
with the structural integrators and others who have testified
against the bill. She requested that the commttee vote against
HB 110.

4:14:10 PM

TRACI G LMOUR, Massage Therapist, testified in support of HB
110. She commented that massage therapists want to deliver the
best massage possible in a safe environnent. She renmarked:

W're all body workers with different training. None
of our therapies stands out as superior, we just
deliver a different product, and in the end we all
mani pul ate soft tissue and work to decrease your pain

and help you feel better. W conpl emrent each ot her,
support each other, encourage, and share clients. W
refer to all other nodalities or therapies. W wor k

under the clouded stigma that our profession was and
in some cases is known for offering sexual favors. W
know that our profession is a haven for sex
trafficking.

M5. d LMOUR explained that the exenptions are different because
practitioners of the exenpted professions generally practice
only one therapy. Bodywor kers who have becone |icensed nassage
therapists are able to bill insurance conpani es. She offered
her opinion that |icensing requirenents have added credibility
and respect to the nmssage profession. She indicated that
wor ki ng cooperatively wth all investigative agencies would
decrease the prevalence of human and sex trafficking. She
stated that closing |I|oopholes would offer protection to
everyone, and increasing education requirenents would inprove
t he know edge of therapists.

M5. G LMOUR noted that other testifiers have nentioned their
concerns with the portion of the bill requiring exenptions to
prove their certification. She expressed that HB 110 would
increase the ability for investigators to enter studios of
exenpted practitioners and would allow investigations to focus

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -16- February 17, 2017



on establishnents suspected to be illegally practicing massage.
She of fered her understanding that HB 110 rmay | ook and feel |ike
government overreach and that it may be a burden to sone. She
stated her desire to have the state and industry be a "brick

wal I" for human traffickers and to no |onger be a safe haven to
conduct illegal activities. She encouraged the passage of HB
110.

4:17: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON referred to the recommendation of a
previous testifier [Ms. Gaeff] to add "standard" precautions to
uni versal precautions in the requirenents proposed under HB 110.
He asked Ms. G | nmour to comment.

M5. G LMOUR stated that the recommendati on has been suggested in
previ ous board neeti ngs.

4:18:14 PM

CHAI R KI TO announced that HB 110 was hel d over

4:18:26 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:19 p. m

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 17, 2017



